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GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

CORPORATE VISION / MISSION STATEMENT

VISION

We aim at transforming GSML into a complete Textile unit to further
explore international market of very high value products.Our emphasis would
be on product and market diversification,value addition and cost effectiveness .
We intend to fully equip the Company to acquire pioneering role in the
economic development of the Country.

Mission

The Conpany should secure and provide a rewarding return on investment
to its shareholders and investors , quality product to its customers , a secured
and environment friendly place of work to its employees and parent itself as
a reliable partner to all business associates.




GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Noticq is hereby given that Annual General Meeting of Gulshan Spinning Mills
Limited (the “Company™) will be held at 2" Floor Finlay House, 1.I. Chundrigar
Road, [Karachi on Saturday 27 October, 2018 at 12:00 noon, to transact the
following business:

1-| To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting of the Company.

2-| To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended on June 30, 2018 together with
Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

3-1 To appoint auditors of the company for the next financial year 2018-2019 and
fix their remuneration. The retiring Auditors M/s Baker Tilly Mehmood Idress
Qamar, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered themselves for
reappointment as Auditors of the company.

a
4-| To transact any other business with the permission of the Chairman @"%
e *\, N 4- 3
By Order of th&{Bdard

- Muhammad Junaid Akhtar
Lahorg: Company Secretary
October 06, 2018

NOTEHS:

1- The share transfer books of the company will remain closed and no
transfer of shares will be accepted for registration from 20™ October,
2018 to 27" October, 2018 (both days inclusive).

2- A member entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting may appoint
any other member as proxy in writing to attend the meeting and vote on
his/her behalf. Duly completed form(s) of proxy must be deposited with
the Company at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48
hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

3- CDC Account Holders are requested to bring with them their CNIC along
with participant I.D &their account number at the time of meeting in order
to facilitate identification. In case of corporate entity, a certified BOD
resolution/ valid power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee
be produced at the time of meeting.

4- Members are requested to notify immediately changes of their addresses
(if any) to our Shares Registrar M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt)
Limited, Karachi Chamber, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi.
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GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Director’s Report to Shareholders

The Directors of your Company are pleased to place their report together with the Auditor’s Report
and audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30. 2018 at the Annual
General Meeting of Company.

Overview

The year under review has also been proved difficult period.Severe energy crises coupled with on-
going financial impediments have obstructed the utilization of production capacities. The root cause
for this underutilization had been non-availability of working capital facilities which were blocked by
the banks/financial institutions unilaterally, and resultantly the Company could not efficiently
purchase raw material to run the mill.

The debt amortization profile, higher interest cost and associated liquidity problems have forced the
Company to initiate restructuring of its debt obligations subject to reconciliation of financial
obligations to ensure continued timely discharge of its commitments to its lenders. The Company has
initiated the debt restructuring process with the help of the key lending financial institutions. In this
regard leading law firm has been appointed as transaction lawyer and restructuring plan/terms are in
process of finalization and majority of financial institutions have agreed in principle to the
restructuring process. Once achieved it would improve the company’s financial health and liquidity of
the Company.

Operating & Financial Performance

Operating indicators 2018 2017
(Rupees) (Rupees)

kSalcs - 15,332,888
Cost of goods sold (93,941,809/-) (122,382,808/-)

\ Financial cost (449,292/-) (605,981/-)
Pre tax Loss (47,040,187/-) (72.633,070/-)
Provision for taxation 2,200.240/- 45,897,6247‘
LLoss after taxation (44,839,947/-) (26.735,446/-)
Tuture Outlook

The restructuring process is expected to be completed soon and this will result in better utilization of
production capacities. Once the ongoing reconciliation & restructuring process is completed, we
would be in a better position to run the operations of the Company in a befitting manner.

Auditors’ Observations

Auditors” Observation regarding going concern, the Management has approached the banks/financial

. institutions for speed up the process of negotiations and finalization of financial restructuring of its
- debts and is confident that outcome will be positive. It is worth noting that restructuring process is at
 advance stage and in this respect majority of the banks/financial institutions have agreed in principle
.t it. A Scheme of Arrangement by the Creditors is in process of finalization with the banks which is

being drafted by the Transaction Lawyer and after its approval from Honourable Sindh High Court, a

syndicated restructuring agreement is proposed to be executed between the Company and respective
anks. According to restructuring terms all ongoing litigations by or against the Company will be
ithdrawn by the respective parties.




The Management is making utmost efforts to recover from the present financial crises and has made
its best and maximum possible efforts to come out from the prevailing misfortunes. Reluctantly, the
Management has to retrench most of their manpower strength and has taken steps towards resource
conservations, effective utilizations of natural resources and raw materials. The Management therefore
is of the view that after restructuring of debts going concern observation will be resolved.

Due to pending litigation in the High Court against the Company for recovery of amount, the
Company has not provided accrued mark-up in these accounts. Consequently banks/financial
institutions have not confirmed the amounts which are already disputed by the Company.

The Company is very hopeful that with reconciliation of amounts, release of security in post re-
profiling scenario, the financial health of the Company will be improved which will enable the
Company to purchase cost effective timely raw material, manage the resources properly, combat the
pressures of local and global market and tackle with energy crises.

Value of investment in Gujranwala Energy Limited (GEL) under equity method has been determined
based on the unaudited financial statements of GEL.GEL was unable to complete its audit due to non-
appointment of CEO by Energy Infrastructure Holding (Pvt) Ltd (EIHPL), which is 50% shareholder
in GEL was required to nominate the CEO for GEL ,however ,the same was not nominated by EIHPL
for several years despite reminders to EIHPL by GEL as a result of which GEL was unable to
complete its audit.

Corporate Governance

Your Company has been complying with the rules & regulations of Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan and has implemented better internal control policies with more rigorous
checks and balances.

Board meetings and attendance

Four (4) meetings of the Board of Directors were held and attendance thereof by each director is as
follows:

Name of Director : No of meeting attended
Mr.Muhammad Magbool Anjum
Mr. Sohail Magsood

Mr. Hussain Ather

Mr. Iftikhar Ali

Mr. Muhammad Akhtar Mirza
Mr. Ashraf Khan

Mr. Abid Sattar

B N T Y VS e S\

Leaves of absence were granted to the members who could not attend the meetings.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance has
established an Audit Committee. Four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held and attendance
thereof by each member is as follows:

Name of Members No of meeting attended
Mr. Hussain Ather 4
Mr.Muhammad Magbool Anjum 2

Mr. Muhammad Akhtar Mirza 4




HR & Remuneration Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance has

also establishedHR & Remuneration Committee. The names of its members are given in the Company
information.

Internal Audit Function

The Board has implemented a sound and effective internal control system including operational,
financial and compliance controls to carry on the business of the Company in a controlled
environment in an efficient manner to address the Company's basic objectives.

Internal audit findings are reviewed by the Audit Committee, where necessary, action taken on the
basis of recommendations contained in the internal audit reports.

Corporate Governance & Financial Reporting Framework

As required by the code of corporate governance, directors are pleased to report that:

. The financial statements prepared by the Management of the Company present fairly its true
state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

J Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

J International accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation
of financial statements.

. The system of internal control is sound and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

. The Board is satisfied that there is no concern as regard to going concern under the Code and
as duly explained in note 1.3 of Financial Statements.

. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as
detailed in the listing regulations of the stock exchanges.

) Key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed.

. There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are

outstanding as on June 30, 2018 except for those disclosed in the financial statements.

. No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this Balance Sheet relates and the date
of the Directors’ Report, except for those disclosed in the financial statements.

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share

The loss per share of the Company for the period ended June 30, 2018 was Rs. (2.02) as compared to
the previous year of Rs. (1.20)

Dividends

Due to circumstances discussed above, the Board of Directors does not recommend dividend for the
year ended on June 30, 2018.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Your company is responsible corporate citizen and fully recognizes its responsibility towards
community, emplo® ees and environment.



Web presence

Annual and periodical financial statements of the Company are also available on the Company website
www.oulshan.com.pk for information of the sharcholders and others.

Related Party Transactions

The transactions between the related parties were made at Arm’s Length prices determined in
accordance with the “comparable uncontrolled price method”. The Company has fully complied with
the best practices on transfer pricing as contained in the listing regulations of stock exchanges in
Pakistan.

Trading in Company’s Shares

During the year under review the trading in shares of the Company by the Directors, Chiet Executive
Officer, Chiet Financial Officer, Company Secretary and their spouse and minor children is as
follows:

Name Opening Balance Purchases Sales Closing Balance
as on 01.07.2017 as on 30.06.2018
Nill

Statement on Value of Staff Retirement Benefit
As on June 30, 2018 deferred liability for gratuity is Rs. 22,099,921/-
Auditors

Messrs Baker Tilly Mehmood Idress Qamar, Chartered Accountants being eligible have oflcered
themselves for re-appointment. The Audit Committee has also recommended their appoinument as
External Auditors ot the Company for the next financial year 2018-2019.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2018 including the information under the code of corporate
of governance is annexed.

Acknowledgement
We express thanks to our valued customers & financial institutions for their cooperation and support.

The Board also acknowledges the hardwork and continuous dedication ot all the employees of the
Company.

On behalt of the Board

"’i(‘&/o‘ ‘\ W
Lahore SOHAIL MAQSOOD
05.10.2018 CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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BTLHR/AA/GSM-79/2018/30

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF GULSHAN SPINNING
MILLS LIMITED
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017, (“the Regulations”) prepared by the Board of Directors of Gulshan Spiuning Mills
Limited for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding ol the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Commitiee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions
and also cnsure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are onlv
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out
pracedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that whether
the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Following instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the Regulations were observed which are not
stated in the Statement of Compliance:

1. During the year, no orientation courses were arranged for its directors to apprise them of their duties and
responsibilities. The board has ensured arrangement of orientation courses for its directors by the end of
June 30, 2019.

2. Nomination committee and risk management committee are not formed by the board.

3. The Company has not prepared, circulated and filed quarterly unaudited financial statements and half

vearly financial statements subject to a limited scope review as required by clauses (xviii and xix) of the
Code.

Bascd on our review, except for the above instance(s) of non-compliance, nothing has come to our atlention which
causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance,
in all material respects, with the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

BAKER TILLY MEHMOOD IDREES QAMAR, Lahore

Chartered Accountants Date: October 05, 2018
Name of Engagement Partner: Bilal Ahmed Khan




BTLHR/AA/GSM-79/2018/29
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Gulshan Spinning Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Gulshan Spinning Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a su mmary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary of the purposes of the audit,

n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
because of the significance of the matters discussed in basis for adverse opinion paragraph, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof do not conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and
do not give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively do not give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at
June 30, 2018, and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows
for the vear then ended.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Fthics Standards Board for
Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence that we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion;

a) as described in note 1.3 to the financial statements, the financial statements have been prepared
on going concern basis. The Company has accumulated loss of Rs. 2,866.228 million as at June
30, 2018, sharcholder’s equity is negative by Rs. 1,416.943 million and as of that date the
Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 3,123.806 million. The Company
has closed its operations due to working capital constraints indicating facing financial problems.
Further, various banks and financial institutions have filed recovery suits against the Company
as detailed in note 28.1 to the financial statements and the ultimate outcome of these suits
cannot presently be determined because these matters are pending before various courts. These
events indicate a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern and therefore the Company may be unable to realize its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The financial statements and notes
thereto do not disclose this fact. The management of the Company also did not provide us its
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assessment of going concern assumption used in the preparation of the financial statements and
the future projections indicating the economic viability of the Company. In our opinion, the
going concern assumption used in the preparation of these financial statements is inappropriate;
Certain litigations have been filed by / against the Company as disclosed in note 28.1 to thesc
financial statements. Management and the legal counsels of the Company in their respective
direct response to our confirmation requests have not provided us their assessment of the
potential outcome of these litigations. Accordingly, the Company has not provided for the
outcome of these litigations. The mark-up / interest on long-term finances, lease finances and
short-term borrowings to the extent aggregating Rs. 1,908.045 million, including balance of Rs.
244 .30 million for the current year, has not been accrued in these financial statements, thereby
increasing shareholders’ equity and current liabilities by Rs. 1,908.045 million, and reducing loss
for the current year by Rs. 244.358 million as fully detailed in note 25.2 to the financial
statements;

we have not received year end confirmations from banks and financial institutions in respect of
bank balances aggregating Rs. 12.366 million (note 16.1) and short-term borrowings aggregating
Rs. 2,735.002 million (note 26.4). No confirmations have been reccived in respect of lease
deposits (note 8), long-term finances from banking companies (note 21 and 27), liabilities against
assets subject to finance lease (note 22 and 27), payable against overdue letter of credit (note
24.1), and accrued mark-up / interest (note 25 and 14). Further, year-end bank statements from
various banks and financial institutions in respect of bank balances and short-term borrowings
were also not available;

as discussed in note 6 and 19 to the accompanying financial statements, freehold and leasehold
land, buildings on freehold and leasehold land, plant and machinery, electric installation and
mills equipment are carried at revaluation model. The Company has not carried out revaluation
exercise of the said items of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the depreciation rates
applied by the Company are significantly below the market average of the industry. Thesc
circumstances rendered us unable to ascertain whether the carrying value of the items of
property, plant and equipment and related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment, depreciation and accumulated depreciation and disclosures thereof and related
deferred tax liability, is sufficient in the financial statements;

Stock-in-trade and stores, spares and loose tools aggregating collectively Rs. 111.014 muillion
along with provision for obsolete inventory and related net realizable value write down has not
been verified; and

the Company has not provided for provision for irrecoverable markup receivable from
associated companies owing to operational and financial difficultics of respective associated
companies that cast significant doubt on recoverability of the said markup;

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the basis for
Adverse Opinion section, we have determined the following matters to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit.
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1. Valuation of trade debts

Refer to note 11 to the financial statements and
accounting policy in note 58 to the financial
statements.

The company has significant balance of trade debts.
Provision against doubtful trade debts is based on
management  judgment to  determine the
appropriate level of provision against balances
which may not ultimately be recovered.

We identified recoverability of trade debts as a key
audit matter as it involves significant management
judgment in determining the recoverable amount of
trade debts.

Our audit procedure to assess the valuation
of trade debts amongst others, include the
following:

— Obtaining an understanding of the
management’s basis for the
determination of the provision required
at the year end and the receivables
collection process.

- On sample basis, closing balances
confirmed by circularization of
confirmation and compared the
responses received with balances as per
clients’ record.

~ TFor sample trade debts, tested the
adequacy of the provision for the
doubtful debts recorded against the trade
debts while taking into account the
ageing of receivables at year end and
receivables after year end as well as
assessing the judgment made by the
management in relation to the credit
worthiness of the debtors.

— Testing the accuracy of the data on
sample basis extracted from the
Company accounting systems which is
used to calculate the ageing of trade
receivables; and

— Assessing the historical accuracy of
provisions for doubtful debts recorded
by examining the utilization or release of
previouslv recorded provisions.

2. Change in accounting policy as a result of
changes in the Companies Act, 2017.

As referred to in note 5.1 to the accompanying
financial statements, the Companies Act, 2017 (the
Act) became applicable for the first time for the
preparation of the Company’s annual financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Due to the above, the Company has changed its
accounting policy to account for surplus on
revaluation of plant and machinery (refer note 6)

Our audit procedures include the following:

- We assessed the procedures applied by
the management for identification of
changes required in the financial
statements due to the application of the
Act. We considered the adequacy and
appropriateness  of the additional
disclosures and changes to the previous
disclosures  based on the new
requirements;
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with retrospective effect. Previously, surplus on
revaluation was presented in the financial
statements below the equity and change in surplus
was taken directly to equity. Due to change in
accounting policy, surplus on revaluation will be
part of the equity and revaluation changes will be
taken through other comprehensive income.

The impact of said change in accounting policy has
been disclosed in note 5.1 to the accompanying
financial statements.

We have considered the above as a key audit matter
due to the significant amount of surplus on
revaluation of plant and machinery, requirements to
apply changes retrospectively in compliance with
IAS 8 - Accounting Policies and Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, and involvement
of expert for valuation of plant and machinery by
management.

— Re-performed the calculations based on
the working and valuation reports of the
respective year to ensure that values of
plant and machinery, and surplus on
revaluation of plant and machinery have
been properly restated in the financial
statements; and

— In respect of the change in accounting
policy for the accounting and
presentation of revaluation surplus as
referred to in note 5.1, 6 and 19 to the
accompanying financial statements; we
assessed the accounting implications and
disclosures in the financial statements in
accordance with the applicable
accounting and reporting standards.

3. Current and deferred tax

As discussed in note 514, 23 and 35 to the
accompanying financial statements, the Company
has recorded reversal of temporary difference that
resulted in reduction of tax expense amounting to
Rs. 2.200 million.

We considered the above matters to be a key audit
matter due to the judgments and estimates inherent
in the calculation of tax expense.

Our audit procedures included the
followings:

- Developed an understanding of
management process for calculating tax
expense;

— Assessed the extent to which provisions
are supported by underlying
circumstances and determined that they
are being made on basis consistent with
previous years;

— Assessed the appropriateness  of
provisions recorded in the financial
statements by using our specialists tax
knowledge and reviewing the latest tax
returns filed by the Company;

— Critically analyzed and challenged the
assumptions used by the management in
calculating tax expense; and

— Ensured that the tax calculated is in
accordance with the requirements of IAS
-12 and the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

4|
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4. Preparation of financial statements under the | Our procedures included, but were not

Companies Act, 2017 limited to:

The Companies  Act, 2017 (the Act) became | - We assessed the procedures applied by
applicable for the first time for the preparation of the management for identification of the
the Company’s annual financial statements for the changes required in the financial
vear ended June 30, 2018. statements due to the application of the
The Act forms an integral part of the statutory Act.

financial reporting framework as applicable to the | = We considered the adequacy  and
Company and amongst others, prescribe the nature appropriateness  of the additional

disclosures and changes to the previous

disclosures based on the new

. . . . 1
and contents of disclosures in relation to various |
. . I
elements of the financial statements. i

|

requirements.
In case of the Company, specific additional ' ' _
disclosures and changes to the existing disclosures | = Ve verified on test bas1-s the supporting
have been included in the financial statements. evidences for the additional disclosures

and ensured appropriateness  of the

The above changes and enhancements in  the disclosures made

financial statements or considered important and
kev audit matter because of the volume and
significance  of the changes in the financial
statements resulting from the transition to the new
reporting requirements under the Act.

For further information, refer to note 3.1 to the
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and requirements
of Companies Act, 2017, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
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enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt in the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.




We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incl
internal control that we identify in our audit.

planned sCope
uding any significant deficiencies in

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that wwe have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rel

matters that mavy reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable related
safeguards.

ationships and other

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine tl
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so
would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communications,

hose matters that were
and are therefore the key

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

, Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

' a) proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017;

1 b) because of the matters described in Basis for

Adverse Opinion section, the statement of

financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the

. statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes

,(d thereon have not been drawn-up n conformi[y with the Companies Act, 2017, and

N however, the same are in agreement with the books of accounts and retu rns;

o ¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the vear were

s, for the purpose of the Company’s business; and 7 -
d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980, (V1] of

1980).

1it

ng, The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Bilal Ahmed Khan.

of

of BAKER TILLY MEHMOOD IDREES QAMAR, Lahore

sts Chartered Accountants Date: October 05, 2018
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GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Long-term investments
Long-term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debtors

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short-term
prepayments

Accrued mark-up / interest

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital

Reserves

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

Accumulated losses

Sub-ordinated loan

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term financing

Liabilitics against assets subject to
finance lease

Deferred labilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up / interest

Unclaimed dividend

Short-term borrowings

Current portion of non-current liabilities
Provision for taxation

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

10
11
12
13
14

15
16

17
18

19

20

21

23

24

25

26

27

28

2018 2017 2016
Restated Restated
Rupees Rupees Rupees
2,101,317,712 2,151,494,2685 2,203,633,647
132,302,532 126,125,291 119,284,405
8,476,563 8,476,563 8,470,503
2,242,096,807 2,286,096,139 2,331,394,615
11,814,020 15,752,027 21,002,703
99,200,095 132,260,793 189,358, 10Y
32,510,762 33,062,468 40,510,111
83,314,144 82,259,244 806,771,970
5,646,915 5,956,271 6,410,485
62,688,063 62,688,063 58,729,962
7,813,322 7,782,270 180,184
12,475,326 30,515,204 15,981,703
315,462,647 370,882,340 435,251,290
2,557,559,454 2,656,978,47Y 2,7606,645.905
222,250,380 222,250,380 222,27\),; S0
272,000,000 272,000,000 272,000.(
955,034,725 962,779,557 979,901,557
(2,866,228,637) (2,838,295,382) (2,828,681,957;
(1,416,943,532) (1,381,205,445) (1,354,529,999)
250,000,000 250,000,000 250,000,000
|
285,234,278 319,959,641 366,027,814
285,234,278 319,959,641 366,027,814
541,593,973 569,639,248 001,149,826
18,899,265 18,899,265 18,599,265
1,037,103 1,037,103 LUS7 105
2,735,002,095 2,7535,371,440 2,739,963,695 ‘
132,070,142 132,652,993 133,305,500
10,666,130 10,684,225 10,792,057
3,439,268,708 3,406,284,283 3,505, 148,091
2,557,559,454 2,656,978,479

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017

- Note Rupees Rupces
47
05
o Sales - net 29 - 15,332,888
03 | tof
E Cost of sales 30 (93,941,809) (122,382,808)

Gross loss (93,941,809) (107,049,920)
E)j Distribution cost 31 (700,603) (922,916)
)L
1 Administrative expenses 32 (15,622,878) (39,879,137)
70 (16,323,481) (40,802,053)
- Loss from operations (110,265,290) (147,851,973)
33
32 Other income 33 63,674,395 75,824,884
30 Finance cost 34 (449,292) (605,981)
3 :
T Loss before taxation (47,040,187) (72,633,070)
E Taxation 35 2,200,240 45,897,624

Loss after taxation (44,839,947) (26,735,446)
18 LLoss per share - basic and diluted 36 (2.02) (1.20)
;x The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
0y
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GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017
Rupees Rupeces
Loss after taxation (44,839,947) (26,735,446)
Other comprehensive income;
Effect of change of rate enacted 9,161,861 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (35,678,086) (26,735,446)

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017
17 Note Rupees Rupees
ees ‘ CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
735,446) Loss before taxation (47,040,187) (72,633,070}
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation 50,176,573 51,992,194
- NRYV loss on stock-in-trade 33,066,698 49,112,623
e Provision for obsolete Stores 3,938,007 5,250,676
E——LH—_G)_)_ Provision for staff retirement benefits - gratuity - 522,920
Finance cost 449,292 605,981
Interest income (6,197,059) (9,602,237)
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts (57,477,336) (65,795,530)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (427,117)
Cash flows before working capital changes (23,084,013) (40,973,560)
Net changes in working capital 37 7,707,250 59,782,205
Cash generated from operations (15,376,763) 18,808,645
3 . Interest received 19,818 136,138
(- Finance cost paid (449,292) (605,981)
— Staff retirement benefits - gratuity paid (1,263,341) (693,469)
-TOR Income tax paid (18,098) (108,409)
Net cash from operating activities (17,087,676) 17,536,924
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 627,285
Addition to property, plant and equipment - (53,000
Investment on order of court - (1,332,888)
Net cash used in investing activities - (758,603)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repavment of labilities against assets subject to finance lease (582,851) (652,572)
Repavment of short-term Financing - net (369,351) (4,592,249)
Net cash used in financing activities (952,202) (5,244,821)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year (18,039,878) 11,533,501
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 30,515,204 18,981,703
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 16 12,475,326 30,515,204

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANCGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Capital reserves Revenue reserves
Share
capital Share Revaluation General Accumulated Total
premium surplus reserve loss
Rupees T
Balance as at July 1, 2016 - as 222,250,380 66,000,000 - 206,000,000 (2.828,681,937) (2.334,431,557)
previusly reported

Effect ot change in accounting policy - - 979,901,557 - - 979,901,557
Balance as at July 1, 2016 - restated 222,250,380 66,000,000 979,901,557 206,000,000 (2,828,681,937) (1,354,330,000)

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment, realized during
the year on account of incremental

depreciation - net of tax - restated - - (17,122,001) B 17,122,001 -

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (26,735,446) (26,735,446)
Balance as at June 30, 2017 - restated 222,250,380 66,000,000 962,779,556 206,000,000 (2,838,295,382) (1,381,265,446)
Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment, realized during
the year on account of incremental
depreciation - net of tax - - (16,906,692) - 16,906,692 -
lLoss for the year - - - - (44,839,947) (44,839,947}
Other comprehensive income - - 9,161,861 - - 9,161,861
- - 9,161,861 - (44,839,947) (33,678,080}
Balance as at June 30, 2018 222,250,380 66,000,000 955,034,725 206,000,000 (2,866,228,637) (1,416,943,532)

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1

1.2

1.3

Gulshan Spinning Mills Limited ("the Company") was incorporated on June 13, 1979, as a public
limited company in Pakistan under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The shares of the Company
are listed on stock exchanges at Karachi and Lahore (now Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited). The
registered office of the Company is situated at 2nd Floor, Finlay House, 1. I. Chundrigar Road,
Karachi, in the province of Sindh, Pakistan. Its main business is manufactu ring and sale of varn.
The manufacturing units of the Company are located at District Kasur, Vehari and Nankana Sahib
in the Province of Punjab.

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on April 05, 2011, approved the scheme
of merger by amalgamation of the Company and Gulistan Spinning Mills Limited with and into
Paramount Spinning Mills Limited along-with the approval of share swap ratio in relation thereto.
The Company on orders of the Honourable High Court of Sindh called Fxtra Ordinary General
Meeting on August 01, 2011, in which the said scheme was approved by shareholders of the
Company. The Company filed an application for withdrawal of merger petition. The Honourable
High Court of Sindh vide order dated December 21, 2017, dismissed thc merger petition as
withdrawn on the application filed by the Company.

Going concern assumption

The Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 2,866.228 million as at June 30, 2018, and as at that
date its current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 3,123.806 million. This is mainly due to
under utilization of capacity because of insufficiency of working capital lines. All the working
capital lines and other finances have been blocked by respective banks and financial institutions
due to litigations with these lenders as detailed in note 28.1.1 to these financial statements. These
conditions along with other adverse key financial ratios and the pending litigations with the
banking companies and financial institutions render the Company unable to operate its
manufacturing facilities in normal manners. This indicates existence of material uncertainty, which
may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. These

financial statements, however, have been prepared under the going concern assumption due to
folowing reasons;

(1) Restructuring / rescheduling of existing debt/ loan facilities availed by the Company
The Company along with its restructuring agent (a leading bank) and a few other lending
banks, had proposed an indicative term-sheet to its lending financial institutions on June
28, 2013, in order to restructure the outstanding debt obligations of the Company. The
proposed term-sheet is still in the process of finalization. Once finalized, it will be signed
by all parties and legal documentation will be executed to restructure ou tstanding debts of
the Company. Salient features of this indicative term-sheet are as follows:

- the existing facilities will be restructured and consolidated into a long-term finance
facility and aggregate principal outstanding will be repaid over 9 years. The SPONSOIs
will inject equity amounting Rs. 400.00 million within one year of the cffective date of
debt restructuring through sale of power generation units and/or the farm houses.
Balance of the outstanding facility amount will be repaid in instalments over a period
of 9 years in arrears on quarterly basis as per the agreed repayment schedule;

- total accrued and outstanding mark-up due/payable till June 30, 2018 by the
Company to its existing lenders will be repaid starting immediately after the expiry of
9 years time period of principal repayment on quarterly basis over a 2 years period
(accrued mark-up period); and




- mark-up rate shall be 5.00% per annum (referred as beginning tenor mark-up) for the
first 2 years of repayment tenor, however, a mark-up of 0.5% per annum shall be paid
by the Company during the first two years of the beginning tenor mark-up period;
whereas the remaining differential mark-up amount ie. 4.5% shall be accumulated
and paid thereafter quarterly, starting immediately after the accrued mark-up period.
For the remaining 7 years of the restructured facility, mark-up shall be charged and
repaid on quarterly basis at the rate of 5.00% per annum.

(i)  the management has made arrangements whereby third party cotton is being
processed against processing fee for utilization of unutilized capacity.

(iii)  the management has also undertaken adequate steps towards the reduction of fixed cost
and expenses. Such steps include, but not limited to, right sizing of the man power,
resource conservation, close monitoring of other fixed cost et cetra.

The indicative term-sheet as referred above, has not been agreed upon to date, by majority of the
lending financial institutions. Despite this, the management optimistically anticipates that in future
all lending institutions would agree the proposed terms, hence, this proposed restructuring along
with the above-mentioned steps will not only bring the Company out of the existing financial
crisis, but also contribute significantly towards the profitability of the Company in the foreseeable
future. Therefore, these financial statements do not include any adjustment that might result
should the Company not being able to continue as a going concern.

1.4 Summary of significant transactions and events affecting the Company’s financial position and

performance

There are no significant event and transaction affecting the Company's tinancial position and

performance during the year.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance \with approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financid
Reporting Standards (IFRS's) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) as
are notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companie
Act, 2017 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except fo
certain classes of property, plant and equipment which have been included a
revalued/recoverable amounts, certain financial assets which are carried at fair values and stat
retirement benefits which has been recognised at present value as determined by the management

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
'These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functiona
currency. All financial information presented in Pak Rupee has been rounded-ott to the neares
Rupee except stated otherwise.

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS ADOPTED DURING THE
YEAR
The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to th
Company's financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:

3.1 New accounting standards / amendments and I[FRS interpretations that are effective for the yea
ended June 30, 2018,
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3.2

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the vear ended June 30,
2018. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are cither not relevant to the

Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Effective from accounting period beginning
Flows' - Amendments as a result of the on or after January 01, 2017.

disclosure initiative.

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Effective from accounting period beginning
Recognition of deferred tax assets for on or after January 01, 2017.

unrealised losses.
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of TFRSs.

The Companies Act, 2017, (the Act) has also brought certain changes with regard to preparation
and presentation of annual and interim financial statements of the Company. These changes also
include change in respect of recognition criteria of surplus on revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment. Further, the disclosure requirements contained in the Fourth Schedule to the Act have
been revised, resulting in the:

- elimination of duplicative disclosures with the TFRS disclosure requirements; and

- iIncorporation of significant additional disclosures.

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not

expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain
additional disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 2 - Share-based Effective from accounting period beginning
Payment - Clarification on the classification on or after January 01, 2018.

and measurement of share-based payment

transactrons.

IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts'. Amendments

regarding the interaction of IFRS 4 and An entity choosing to apply the overlay
approach retrospectively to qualifying
financial assets does so when it first applies
IFRS 9. An entity choosing to apply the
deferral approach does so for annual periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2018.

Effective from accounting period beginning

IFRS 9 F.manc1a1 Instruments - T}‘.IIS on or after July 01, 2018,
standard will supersede IAS 39 'Financial
Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement' upon its effective date.

Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘'Financial Effective from accounting period beginning
Instruments' - Amendments regarding on or after January 01, 2019.

prepayment features with  negative

compensation and modifications  of

financial liabilities.

IFRS 15 'Revenue' - This standard will

supersede 1AS 18, 1AS 11, IFRIC 13, 15 and Effective from accounting period beginning

18 and SIC 31 upon its effective date. on or after July 01, 2018,




IFRS 16 'Leases' - This standard will

supersede IAS 17 'Leases' upon its effective Effective from accounting period beginning

date. on or after January 01, 2019.
Amendments to 1AS 19 'Employee Benefits' Effective from accounting period beginning
- Amendments regarding plan on or after January 01, 2019.

amendments, curtailments or settlements.

Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in . . . L
Effective from accounting period beginning

Associates and Joint Ventures'- on or after January 01, 2019.

Amendments regarding long-term interest
in associate or joint venture that form part
of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture but to which the equity

method is not applied.

Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Effective from accounting period beginning
Property' - Clarification on transfers of on or after January 01, 2018. Earlier
property to or from investment property. application is permitted.

Amendments to IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Effective from accounting period beginning
Transactions and Advance Consideration’ on or after January 01, 2018. EKarlie

application is permitted.

Effective from accounting period beginning

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax on or after January 01, 2019.

Treatments: Clarifies the accounting
treatment in relation to determination of
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments under IAS 12 'Income Taxes'.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted
locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:
- [FRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral accounts
- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to excrcise its judgement
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions

and estimates are significant to the Company’s financial statements or where judgements werc exercised
in application of accounting policies are as follows;

(i) Estimate of useful lives, residual values of property, plant and equipment and recoverable values
to account for impairment loss (note 5.2 and 5.17);

(i) Net realisable values of stores, spares and loose tools and stock-in-trade (notes 5.6 and 5.7);

(iii) Provision for doubtful trade debtors (note 5.8);

(iv) Provision for staff retirement benefits - gratuity (note 5.12); and

(v) Provision for taxation (note 5.14).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of thesc financial statements are set out
below. FExcept for the changes as described in note 5.1 below, the accounting polices have been
consistently applied to all the years presented.

5.1 Change in accounting policy

The promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has repealed the Companies Ordinance,
1984 (the Ordinance) and hence, Section 235 of the Ordinance relating to accounting treatment and
presentation of the surplus on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment has not been carried
forward in the Act. Consequently, in accordance with the requirements of the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) - TAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment", the said surplus
on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment would be presented under equity.

As a result of this change, increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of Property,
Plant and Equipment to be recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and in
accumulated reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease
previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase would first be recognised in profit
or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset would first be recognised in
other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all
other decreases would be charged to profit or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax, would be reclassified from the revaluation surplus on
Property, Plant and Equipment to retained earnings.

Surplus on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment would now form part of reserves and the
change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 8 *Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and
comparative figures have been restated.

The effect of change in accounting policy is summarised below:

2017 2016
As previously As previously
stated As restated Restatement stated As restated Restatement
Rupees

Effect on Statement of

Financial Position
Surplus on revaluation of property,

plant and equipment 962,779,557 - (962,779,557) 979,901,557 - (979,901,357
Share capital and reserves - 962,779,557 962,779,557 - 979,901,557 979,901,557

Effect on Statement of

Changes in Equity
Capital reserve . 962,779,557 962,779,557 - 979,901,557 479,901,557
Property, plant and equipment - owned
Property, plant and equipment except for freehold land, factory and residential buildings, plant
and machinery, electric installations, gas power generators and capital work-in-progress are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if anv. Freehold land is stated at
revalued amount whereas factory and residential buildings, plant and machinery, electric
installation and gas power generators are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any. All expenditure connected with
specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-
in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognised as a separate assets, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Normal repairs and maintenance are
charged to expenses as and when incurred.




5.3

5.4

Depreciation on assets is charged to income applying the reducing balance method at the rates
stated in note 6.1 after taking into account residual values, if any. Depreciation on additions is
charged from the month in which the assets become available for use, while on disposals
depreciation is charged upto the month of deletion.

The depreciation method and useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each reporting date and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any
change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate by changing the depreciation charge
for the current and future years.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of operating fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and carrying amount of assets and are included in the profit and loss
account.

Surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to surplus on
revaluation account. Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair values of
the revalued assets do not differ materially from their carrying amounts.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant
and equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where
carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their
recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is taken to the profit and loss account
except for impairment loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against related revaluation
surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation of the
asset.

Accounting for leases and assets subject to finance lease
Finance lease

These are stated at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease
agreements and the fair value of assets. The related obligation of leases is accounted for as liability.
Finance cost is allocated to accounting periods in a manner so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of finance cost on the remaining balance of principal liability for each period.

Depreciation is charged to income at the rates stated in note 6.1 applying reducing balance method
to write-off the carrying amount of the asset over its estimated remaining useful life in view of
certainty of ownership of assets at the end of lease period.

Finance cost and depreciation on leased assets are charged to income currently.

Investments

Investment in an associated company

Investments in associated companies are accounted for by using equity basis of accounting, under
which the investments in associated companies are initially recognised at cost and the carrying
amounts are increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of profit or loss of the
associated companies after the date of acquisition. The Company's share of profit or loss of the
associated companies is recognised in the Company's profit or loss. Distributions received from the
associated companies reduce the carrying amounts of investments.

Adjustments to the carrying amounts are also made for changes in the Company's proportionate
interest in the associated companies arising from changes in the associated companies' equity that
have not been recognised in the associated companies' profit or loss. The Company's share of those
changes is recognised directly in equity of the Company.

Where Company's share of losses of associated companies equals or exceeds its interest in the
associates, the Company discontinues recognising its share of further losses except to the extent
that Company has incurred legal or constructive obligation or has made payment on behalf of the
associates. If the associates subsequently report profits, the Company resumes recognising its
share of those profit only after its share of the profit equals the share of losses not recognised.
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5.5

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

Investment held to maturity

Investment with fixed maturity that the management has the positive intent and ability to hold till
maturity, are classified as 'held to maturity' and are initially measured at cost and at subsequent
reporting dates measured at amortized cost using the effective yield method.

Investment in joint venture

Joint venture are those entities over whose activities the Company has joint control, established by
contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic, financial and operating
decisions. Joint control entity is accounted for by using the equity method and is recognized
inttially at cost. The financial statements include the Company's shares of the income and the
expenses and cquity movements of equity accounted investees, after adjustment to align the
accounting policies with those of the Company, from the date that significant influence or joint
control commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases. When the
Company's share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying
amount of that interests reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except
of the extent that the Company has an obligation or made payments on behalf of the investee.

At fair value through profit and loss

Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term exhibiting
short-term profit taking are classified as investments are fair value through profit or loss. All
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit and loss account. These are stated at fair value
with any resulting gains or losses recognised directly in the profit and loss account.

Long-term deposits

These are stated at cost which represents the fair value of consideration given.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stores, spare parts and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of
inventory is based on weighted average cost less provision for obsolescence. ftems in transit are
stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges thereon accumulated up to the reporting
date.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value (NRV) except
waste, which is valued at NRV. (Net realisable value signifies the selling price in the ordinary
course of business less cost of completion and cost necessary to be incurred to effect such sale).
Cost of raw materials, packing materials and components represent invoice values plus other
charges paid thereon.

Cost in relation to work-in-process and finished goods represents direct cost of raw materials,
wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads.

Goods in transit are valued at cost comprising of invoice value plus other charges accumulated up
to the reporting date.

Trade debtors and other receivables

Trade debtors are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of
consideration to be received in future and subsequently measured at cost less provision for
doubtful debts. Carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are assessed at each reporting
date and a provision is made for doubtful receivables when collection of the amount is no longer
probable. Debts considered irrecoverable are written-off.

Short-term investment

Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term exhibiting
short-term profit taking are classified as investments at fair value through profit or loss. All
transaction cost are recognised directly in profit and loss account. These are stated at fair value

with any resulting gains or losses recognised directly in the profit and loss account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and balances with banks.
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5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

Interest / mark-up bearing loans and borrowings
Interest / mark-up bearing loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance
charges are accounted for on accrual basis.

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all of its permanent employees whe
have completed minimum qualification period for entitlement to gratuity. Provision is made on
the basis of actuarial valuation. The recent actuarial valuation was carried-out on June 30, 2014

The amount arising as a result of re-measurements are recognised in the balance sheet
immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they
occur. Past-service cost, if any, are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be
paid in future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the Company.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax payable, adjustments, if any, to provision far
tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years and
deferred tax.

Current

Provision for current year's taxation is based on taxable income for the year at current rates of
taxation after taking into account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any, and taxcs patd under
the presumptive tax regime.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax asset is recognized for all the deductible temporary differences only to the extent that
It is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for all the taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the

period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent assets are not recognized and are also not disclosed unless an inflow of economic
benefits is probable and contingent liabilities are not recognized and only disclosed unless the
probability of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognised when the Company loses
control of contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss-
on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the profit and loss;
account for the year.
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5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet includes deposits, trade debtors, loans and
advances, accrued mark-up / interest, short-term investments, other receivables, cash and bank
balances, long-term finances, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, trade and other
payables, accrued mark-up / interest and short-term borrowings.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of
consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost as the casc may be. The particular
recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with
cach item.

Impairment loss

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identifv
circumstances indicating occurrence ot impairment loss or reversal of provisions for impairment
losses. If any indications exist, the recoverable amounts of such assets are estimated and
impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account
and in case revalued assets are tested for impairment, then impairment loss up to the extent of
revaluation surplus shall be recognised in revaluation surplus and remaining loss, if any shall be
recognized in profit and loss account. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost
of the asset.

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle either on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Foreign currency translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee, using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. All
arising exchange gains and losses are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of consideration received or receivable on the following basis;

- Local sales are recognised on dispatch of goods to customers and export sales are
recognised on bill of lading date.
- Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.
- Dividend income from the investments is recognised, when the Company's right to receive
dividend has been established.
- Gain or loss on sale of investments is accounted for, when the commitment (trade date) for
sale is made.
Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to income in the period in
which they are incurred.

Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the

Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.




5.23 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions regarding resource allocation and performance assessment.

5.24 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are recognised
in the period in which these are approved.

5.25 Related party transactions
All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arms' length price using the

method prescribed under the Companies Act, 2017 (comparable uncontrolled price method) with
the exception of loan taken from related parties which is interest / mark-up frec.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment 6.1 2,101,317,712 2,151,494,285
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6.2

6.3

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupues
Depreciation charge has been
allocated as follows;

Cost of goods manufactured 30.1 48,656,814 50,164,603
Distribution cost 31 700,603 922,916
Administrative expenses 32 819,156 904,675

50,176,573 51,992,194

The Company has revalued its freehold land, factory buildings, residential buildings, owned and
leased plant and machinery, electric installation and gas and power generator on June 30, 2012
Had the property, plant and equipment been recognised under the cost model, the carrying
amount of each revalued class of property, plant and equipment would have been as follows;

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
Owned
Freehold land 14,878,943 14,878,943
Factory buildings 86,360,556 88,574,929
Residential buildings 58,630,530 60,133,877
Plant and machinery 537,833,880 551,624,492
Electric installations 46,849,823 48,051,100
Gas power generators 60,064,831 62,567,532
Leased
Plant and machinery 66,034,629 67,727,825
870,653,192 893,558,698
7 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Long-term investments in;
- Joint venture 7.1 - -
- Defence Saving Certificates 7.2 57,018,604 50,841,363
- Investment on order of court 7.3 75,283,928 75,283,928
132,302,532 126,125,291
7.1 Investments in a Joint venture -
under equity method
Gujranwala Energy Limited
7,500,000 (2017: 7,500,000) ordinary shares
of Rs.10 each - cost 711 75,000,000 75,000,000
Accumulated share of post acquisition loss (75,000,000) (75,000,000)
Share of loss for the year - -
(75,000,000) (75,000,000}

7.1.1 This represent 50% interest in Gujranwala Energy Limited (GEL), a joint venture , between
the Company and Energy Infrastructure Holdings Limited for setting up 200 MW power
project at Sungo-Wali, Tehsil Wazirabad, District Gujranwala. Un-audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, of GEL have been used by the management to
determine the value of its investments in joint venture under the equity method. Further,
the audited financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, 2014,
2013, 2012 and 2011 of GEL were also not available and values of this investment of that
years are based on un-audited financial statements. Following disclosures are also based

on the above mentioned un-audited financial statements.



7.2

7.3

7.1.2 GEL in order to achieve the financial close, has mandated National Bank of Pakistan (NBP)
to arrange Rs.14,135.00 million. The aforesaid mandate was executed on April 14, 2008.
However, due to deteriorating law and order situation, circular debt issue, etc., the
financial close could not be achieved within the envisaged time period. GEL, as a result
thereof, approached Private Power and Infrastructure Board (PPIB) with the request to
make certain amendments in the power purchase agreement to facilitate the financial close
but PPIB did not respond positively towards the GEL's request and as a consequence
thereof GEL has filed a petition in the Honourable High Court of Sindh to protect itself
from the repercussions of not achieving the financial close with in stipulated time period
including encashment of performance guarantee amounting to U.S. $ 1,000,000/ - extended
to PPIB.

71.3 Arrangements for commercial operations date including the availability of finance and
import of engines is not finalised. Due to failure of National Bank of Pakistan (the
arranger) to arrange requisite finance within cut-out date i.e. June 15, 2009. GEL proposed
amendments in Implementation Act and Power Purchase Agreement and sought extension
in financial close date in prevailing force majeure. Neither such amendments was
addressed nor the date of financial close extended. Consequently on these grounds GEL
filed a suit in the Honourable High Court of Sindh at Karachi for redressal of its
grievances. The Honourable High Court has ordered the plaintiff (GEL) to keep alive
guarantee and has restricted PPIB from en-cashing the guarantee till the adjudication of
application filed by the GEL.

714 With reference to (note 7.1.2) and (note 7.1.3) GEL has also extended commitment bank
guarantee amounting to Euro €. 3,000,000/- in favour of Wartsila, Finland (supplier of
engines). During the financial year ended June 30, 2010, GEL could not raise the requisite
funds and deposit initial mobilization advance with Wartsila and accordingly, Wartsila
approached the concerned bank for encashment of guarantee. However, GEL filed a
petition in Honourable High Court of Sindh to protect encashment of such guarantee. The
Honourable High Court has restricted Wartsila from en-cashment of guarantee till the
adjudication of the application filed by GEL.

7.1.5 The Joint Venture Partners of GEL (i.e. the Company and Energy Infrastructure Holdings
Limited) are responsible to the extent of 50% each in respect of the liabilities and
obligations of GEL, including any obligation under the guarantees mentioned under note
7.1.3 and 7.1.4 above.

71.6 The Honorable High Court of Sindh via its order dated July 22, 2015 dismissed the stay
order previously granted in favour of GEL against encashment of guarantees. The
management of the Company has made necessary adjustments to these financial
statements in light of the above-mentioned court decision by booking its share of loss.

This represents investment in Defence Savings Certificates, having aggregate face value of Rs.

21.00 million (2017: Rs. 21.00 million). These certificates are maturing on various dates by March 5,

2020. These carried mark-up at the effective rate of 12.15% per annum (2017: 12.15% per annum).

Accrued mark-up aggregating Rs. 35.349 million (2017: Rs. 29.841 million) is included in the

carrying value. These are under lien with a bank against guarantee amounting Rs. 19.504 million

(2017: Rs. 19.504 million).

The Honorable High Court of Sindh via its order against suite no. B-64 of 2012 dated July 04, 2015

allowed a plaintiff bank the sale of pledged goods, cotton bales and stocks through public auction

at the best market rate available. The Court assigned Official Assignee to sell the pledged goods
through the public auction conducted August 28, 2015 in accordance with the law/rules and
ordered the sales proceeds to be invested in some government profitable scheme upon realization.

The Offcial Assignee via its report dated December 15, 2015 informed the Court of the sale of

pledged stock and investment of sale proceeds in some government profitable scheme.



2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
8 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Utilities 8,231,998 8,231,998

Lease deposits 3,417,885 3,577,885

Others 244,565 244,565

11,894,448 12,054,448

Less: transferred to current assets

- deposits pertaining to over due portion
of lease liabilities (3,417,885) (3,577,885)
8,476,563 8,476,563
9 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 45,946,268 45,946,268

Spare parts 7,914,197 7,914,197

Loose tools 2,648,630 2,648,630

Packing material 5,940,962 5,940,962

62,450,057 62,450,057

Less: provision for obsolete inventory (50,636,037) (46,698,030

11,814,020 15,752,027

10 STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials 10.1 61,706,635 82,275,513
Finished goods 10.2 37,493,460 49,991,280
99,200,095 132,266,793

10.1 Raw materials include items costing Rs. 82.275 million (2017: Rs. 109.700 million) stated at thelr
replacement cost aggregating Rs. 61.706 million (2017: Rs. 82.275 million). The amount charged to
the profit and loss account for the year in respect of raw materials written down to their
replacement cost is Rs. 20.568 million (2017: Rs. 27.425 million).

10.2 Finished goods include items having net realizable value (NRV) Rs. 49.99 million (2017: Rs. 66.635
million) stated at their NRV aggregating Rs. 37.493 million (2017: Rs. 49.991 million). The amount
charged to the profit and loss account for the year in respect of stocks written down to their net
realisable values was Rs. 12.497 million (2017: Rs. 16.663 million).

10.3 All of the current assets of the Company are under banks' charge as security of short-term
borrowings as disclosed in note 26 to these financial statements. The Company filed a global suit
in the Lahore High Court against all banks / financial institutions under section 9 of the Financial
Institutions (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001. Further various banks and financid
institutions have also filed suits before banking courts and high courts for recovery of thelr
financial liabilities through attachment and sale of Company's hypothecated / mortgaged /
charged stocks and properties as fully disclosed in note 28.1.1.

2018 2017

Note Rupees Rupees
11 TRADE DEBTORS - unsecured
Local - considered good 11.1 32,510,762 33,662,468
Local - considered doubtful 113,983,771 171,461,107
146,494,533 205,123,575
Provision for doubtful debts (113,983,771) (171,461,107)
32,510,762 33,662,468
11.1 This includes following amounts which
pertain to related parties;

Paramount Spinning Mills Limited 11.1.1 883,261 1,992,457
Gulistan Spinning Mills Limited 11.1.2 5,910,478 5,910,478
6,793,739 7,902,935
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11.1.1  The maximum amount due as at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 1,992,457/ -
(2017: Rs. 1,992,457 /-,

11.1.2 The maximum amount due as at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 5,910,478/ -

{(2017: Rs. 5,910,478/ -).

11.1.3  As at June 30, 2018, trade debts due from related parties amounting to Rs. 6.793 million
(2017 Rs. 7.902 million) were past due but not impaired. The age analysis of these trade
debts is as follows;

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
Upto T month - -
1 to 2 months - -
2 to 3 months - -
4 to 12 months - -
More then 12 months 6,793,739 7,902,935
6,793,739 7,902,935
LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured and
considered good
Advances to/against;
- employees/non-executive staff 5,225,838 5,605,738
- suppliers 37,408,504 36,692,504
- others 40,679,802 39,901,002
83,314,144 82,259,244

12.1 This represents advaces to Gulistan Spinning Mills Limited, a related party. The maximum amount

due as at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 40,679,802/- (2017: Rs. 39,901 ,002/4).

12.2 As at June 30, 2018, advances to related party amounting to Rs. 40.679 million (2017: Rs. 39.901
million) were past due but not impaired. The age analysis of these advances is as follows:

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
Upto 1 month - -
1 to 2 months - -
2 to 3 months - -
4 to 12 months - -
More then 12 months 40,679,802 39,901,002
40,679,802 39,901,002
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Current portion of lease deposits 8 3,417,885 3,577,885
Margins against letter of credit and bank guarantees 2,229,030 2,229,030
Prepayments - 149,356
5,646,915 5,956,271
ACCRUED MARK-UP /INTEREST
Mark-up / interest accrued on;
- term deposit receipts 1,837,286 1,837,286
- over due receivable balances of associated
companies 14.1 60,850,777 60,850,777
62,688,063 62,688,063

14.1 This includes interest receivable from Gulistan Spinning Mills Limited, a related party, amounting
to Rs. 42,862,303/~ (2017: Rs. 42,862,303/-). The maximum amount receivable as at the end of any
month during the year was Rs. 42,862,303/~ (2017: Rs. 42,862,303/ -).




14.2 As at June 30, 2018, mark-up receivable from related party amounting to Rs. 42.862 million (2017,
Rs. 42.862 million) were past due but not impaired. The age analysis of these trade debts is as

follows;
2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
Upto 1T month - -
1 to 2 months - i,
2 to 3 months - -
4 to 12 months - -
More then 12 months 42,862,303 42,862,303
42,862,303 42,862,303
15 OTHER RECEIVABLES - unsecured
and considered good
Sales tax 6,122,252 6,091,200
Rebate receivable 1,691,070 1,691,070
7,813,322 7,782,270
16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash-in-hand 109,073 109,073
Balances with banks in;
- current accounts 3,511,473 21 ,55’1,35ﬂ
- deposit accounts 96,371 96,371 ‘
- term deposit receipts 16.1 8,758,409 8,758,409 i
12,366,253 30,406,131
12,475,326 30,515,204

16.1 Term deposit receipts aggregating Rs. 5.617 million (2017: Rs. 5.617 million) are under banks
charge against guarantees aggregating Rs. 55.069 million. (2017: Rs. 55.069 million).

16.2 Majority of the Company's bank accounts operations have been blocked by the respective banks
due to on-going litigations with these banks as detailed in note 28.1.1 to these financial statements.
Further, due to the litigation and blockage of bank accounts, bankstatements for the year ended
June 30, 2018, from various banks having balances aggregating to Rs. 3.253 million (2017: Rs. 3.09
million) were not available to ensure balances held with these banks. Further, year end balance
confirmation of banks having balances aggregating to Rs. 12.366 million (2017: Rs. 19.917 million]
have also not been received due to litigation.

17 SHARE CAPITAL

2018 2017 2018 2017
Numbers Numbers Rupcees Rupeces

Authorized capital

25,000,000 25,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 250,000,000 250,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
9,300,000 9,300,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 93,000,000 93,000,000
issued as fully paid in cash
12,925,038 12,925,038 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 129,250,380 129,250,380
issued as fully paid bonus shares
22,225,038 22,225,038 222,250,380 222,250,380

17.1 Ordinary shares held by the related
parties at the year end;
Gulistan Spinning Mills Limited - Number 10,302 10,302
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2018 2017

Note Rupees Rupees
RESERVES
Capital reserve
Share premium 18.1 66,000,000 66,000,000
Revenue reserve
General reserve 206,000,000 206,000,000
272,000,000 272,000,000

18.1 This represents excess of consideration received on issue of ordinary shares over face value on
ordinary shares issued.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,224,278,186 1,248,738,187
I'ransfer to unappropriated profit in respect of;
- incremental depreciation (23,812,242) (24,460,001)
Surplus on revaluation at the end of the
year - gross 1,200,465,944 1,224,278,186
Related deferred tax liabilities on:
Revaluation at the beginning of the year 261,498,630 268,836,630
Incremental depreciation on revalued assets (6,905,550) (7,338,000)
Effect of change of rate enacted (9,161,861) -
245,431,219 261,498,630

Surplus on revaluation at the end of the
year - net of tax 955,034,725 962,779,557
19.1 The Company had revalued its freehold land on the basis of market value on February 3, 2009.

Freehold land was revalued by an independent valuer - M/s Consultancy Support and Services,
Karachi and resulted in revaluation surplus of Rs 227.54 million.

Further, The Company had revalued its frechold land, factory building, residential buildings,
leased and owned plant and machinery, electric installations and gas power gencrator as on June
30, 2012. The revaluation exercise was carried-out by an independent valuer - Maricon Consultants
(Private) Limited, Engineers, authorized valuers of the Pakistan Banking Association and the
Leasing Association of Pakistan, Beaumont Road, Karachi. Freehold land has been revalued on the
basis of current market value whereas buildings, plant and machinery, electrical installations and
gas power generators have been revalued on the basis of depreciated replacement values. The net
appraisal surplus arisen on this revaluation aggregating Rs. 2,597.577 million has been credited to
this account to comply with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017.

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
SUB-ORDINATED LOAN - unsecured 250,000,000 250,000,000

This is an interest-free loan obtained from Director of the Company in previous years. This loan is sub-
ordinated to the finances provided by secured creditors and does not carry mark-up. The loan shall not
be repaid without obtaining consent from the secured creditors subject to availability of resources and at
discretion of the Company. This loan has been classified in equity as per technical release 'Accounting
Directors' Loan (ITR-32) of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.




2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

21 LONG-TERM FINANCING
From banking companies - secured

Faysal Bank Limited - term finance 11 21.1 - -
Standard Chartered Bank - term finance 111 21.2 - -
Bank Alfalah Limited - LTF EOP 21.3 - -

21.1

21.2

21.3

Faysal Bank Limited - term finance 11
Balance at beginning of the year 35,714,286 35,714,286
Less: current portion:

- overdue instalmets (35,714,286) (35,714,286)

The Company, during the financial year ended June 30, 2012, had entered into an agreement with
Faysal Bank Limited amounting Rs. 50.00 million to convert its short-term debt into long-term
finance. This finance facility carried mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 2.50% per annum.
Originally, the principal amount under this finance agreement was repayable in 7 equal half yearly
instalments ending on August 6, 2015, however, due to factors stated in note 21.5 below, the whole
amount has been grouped in current liabilities. This term finance is secured by way of lst pari
passu equitable mortgage and hypothecation charge over fixed asscts of the Company upto
Rs.100.00 million.

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Standard Chartered Bank - term finance III
Balance at beginning of the year 75,000,000 75,000,000
Less: current portion:
- overdue instalmets (75,000,000) (75,000,000)

The Company had availed a term finance amounting Rs. 75.00 million from Standard Chartered
Bank (Pakistan) Limited, for balance sheet re-profiling by terming out short-term borrowings. This
finance carried mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.75% payable on quarterly basis.
Originally, this term finance was repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments ending on May 31,
2015, however, due to factors stated in note 21.5 below, the whole amount has been grouped in
current liabilities. This term finance is secured against 1st pari passu charge over plant and
machinery, ranking charge over present and future current and fixed assets of the Company.

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Bank Alfalah Limited - LTF EOP
Balance at beginning of the year 3,672,477 3,672,477
Less: current portion:
- overdue instalmets (3,672,477) (3,672,477)

The Company, being eligible for LTF - EOP promulgated by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), applicd
to National bank of Pakistan, United Bank Limited and Bank Alfalah Limited for restructuring tor
their existing loans and after approval, the banks had transferred their liabilities to this new loan
account. This re-financed facility enabled the banks to obtain funds from SBP under the scheme at
the specified rates and passed on the benefits to the Company by way of rebated purchase price.
Year-end balance represents payable to Bank Alfalah Limited and was repayable in 2 quarterly
instalments ended on September 30, 2012. This finance carried mark-up at the rate of 7% per
annum. This loan is secured by way of 1st pari passu charge over fixed assets of the Company.
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21.4 The Company filed a global suit in the Honorable Lahore High Court against all banks / financial
institutions under section 9 of the Financial [nstitutions (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001,
for rendition of accounts and damages and lending banks have also filed suits before different
High Courts for recovery of their long-term and short-term liabilities through attachment and sale
of Company's hypothecated / mortgaged / charged stocks and properties as fully disclosed in
note 28.1.1. Due to these litigations, year-end confirmations from all lending banks have not been
received.

21.5 Due to the abovementioned litigations, the Company's financial arrangements with these banking
companies are disputed and these liabilities have become payable on demand, so instalments due
have been grouped in current portion of non-current liabilities in accordance with the
requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 'Financial Statement Presentation'.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT
TO FINANCE LEASE - secured
Balance at beginning of the year 18,266,231 18,918,802
Less: payments/adjustments made during the year (582,851) {652,571)
17,683,380 18,266,231

lLess: current portion:
- over due instalments (17,683,380) (18,266,231)
Balance at end of the year - -

22.1 The Company had acquired plant and machinery and vehicles under finance lease arrangements
from leasing companies, modarabas and banks. These liabilities, during the year, were subject to
finance cost at the rates ranging from 7.00% to 18.15% (2017: 7.00% to 18.15%) per annum. The
Company intends to exercise its option to purchase the leased assets upon completion of the lease
term. The lease finance facilities are secured against title of the leased assets in the name of lessors.

22.2 The Company filed a suit in the Honorable Lahore High Court against all banks/financial
institutions/lessors under section 9 of the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance,
2001, for rendition of accounts and damages. Further, various lessors have also filed suits before
the banking court and the Honorable High Court of Sindh for recovery of lease finance through
attachment and sale of charged properties as fully disclosed in note 28.1.1. Due to these litigations,
year-end confirmations from all lessors have not been received.

22.3 Due to the facts explained in notes 22.2 above, the entire amounts of the leasc finances have
become payable on demand, therefore, the amount of future finance cost is not ascertainable as at
June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017. The disclosures of future minimum lease payments is prepared
according to existing repayment schedules and provided only to comply with the disclosure
requirement of IAS - 17 'Leases'. According to the existing repayment schedules, the future
minimum lease payments under these lease finance agreements are due as follows;

2018 2017
Minimum Finance Present value of | Minimum Finance Present value of
lease charges for minimum lease leasc charges for minimum lease
payments |future periods payments payments future periods payments
Rupees Rupees
Payable within one year 17,683,380 - 17,683,380 18,266,231 - 18,266,231
Minimum lease payments 17,683,380 - 17,683,380 18,266,231 - 18,266,231
2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 23.1 - 23,363,262
Deferred taxation 23.2 285,234,278 296,596,379

285,234,278 319,959,641




23.1

23.2

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

The Company's obligation, as per the assumptions given in the latest actuarial valuation disclosed
in annual report of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2014, in respect of defined benefit

gratuity plan, is as follows;

Note
23.1.1 Movement in the net liability
recognized in the balance sheet
Net liability at beginning of the year
Charge to profit and loss account
Less: benefits paid during the year
Less: benefits due but not paid
Closing net liability
23.1.2 Movement in present value of
defined benefit obligation
Balance at beginning of the year
Current service cost
Less: benefits paid during the year
Less: benefits due but not paid
Balance at end of the year
Expense recognized in the profit
and loss account

23.1.3

Current service cost

23.1.4 Expense is allocated as follows;

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

23.1.5 Actuarial assumptions used

Discount rate

Expected rate of growth p.a. in future salaries

Average expected remaining working life time
of employees

Mortality rates (for death in service)

Note

Deferred taxation
The net liability for deferred taxation

comprises timing differences relating to;
Taxable temporary differences

(deferred tax liabilities)
Accelerated tax depreciation - owned assets
Surplus on revaluation property, plant and equipment
Assets subject to finance lease
Deductible temporary differences

(deferred tax assets)
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Provisions and allowances

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
23,363,262 23,533,811
- 522,920
(1,263,341) (693,469
(22,099,921) -
- 23,363,262
23,363,262 23,533,811
- 522,920
(1,263,341) (693,469
(22,099,921) -
- 23,363,262
- 522,920
- 87,350
- 435,570
- 522,920
13.25% 13.25%
12.25% 12.25%
6 years 6 years
SLIC SLIC
2001-2005 2001-2005
2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
194,878,989 192,788,218
250,172,564 274,855,819 !
28,048,301 29,991,688
'
(6,408,977) (7,008,979)
(176,328,419) (188,550,498)
(5,128,180) (5,479,869)
285,234,278 296,596,379




2018 2017
sed Note Rupees Rupees
efit Opening balance 296,596,379 342,494,003
Charged / adjusted during the year;
Origination/reversal of temporary differences (1,475,555) (45,897,624)
Effect of change of rate enacted (9,886,546) -
(11,362,101) (45,897,624)
285,234,278 296,596,379
11 Deferred tax asset in respect of the unused tax losses amounting Rs. 1,006.962 million (2017: Rs.
20 2,539.205 million) has not been recognised in these financial statements, being prudent. The
169) management of the Company is of view that recognition of deferred tax asset will be reassessed as
S at June 30, 2019.
62 2018 2017
- Note Rupees Rupees
24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
311 Creditors 20,617,249 26,651,035
120) Bills payable / letters of credit payable 24.1 455,469,519 455,469,519
169) Accrued expenses 5,125,095 29,109,756
3 Staff retirement benefits due but not paid 23.1.1 22,099,921 -
62 Income tax payable 963,575 2,278,090
o Advances from others 37,318,614 56,130,848
541,593,973 569,639,248
20 _ 24.1 This represents overdue bills payable / letters of credit payable to various financial institutions /
banks in respect of letters of credit (LCs) issued by the financial institutions in favour of various
350 local and imported raw material suppliers. The Company is in litigation with banks and financial
570 institutions as detailed in note 28.1.1, so current status and balance confirmation of these bills
)20 payable could not be ascertained due to non-availability of relevant documents. Further, no
. provision of any further commission / interest / mark-up or penalty in respect of overdue 1.Cs has
been made in these financial statements. Amount of the un-provided commission / interest /
mark-up or penalty is impracticable to determine as at the reporting date.
2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
25 ACCRUED MARK-UP /INTEREST
Mark-up / interest accrued on;
Long-term finances 25.1 12,826,114 12,826,114
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 25.2 - -
Short-term borrowings 25.2 - -
Security deposit 6,073,151 6,073,151
18,899,265 18,899,265
251 This represents mark-up payable to Gulistan Fibres Limited, "an associated company", on long-
term loan. The principal amount of the loan was paid.
25.2 During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company has not provided mark-up / interest on its long-
18 term finances, lease finances and short-term borrowings to the extent of Rs. 8.583 million, Rs. 1.224
319 million and Rs. 234551 million respectively (2017: Rs. 8.420 million, Rs. 1.224 million and Rs.
88 230.662 million respectively) due to pending litigations with the financial institutions. Further, as
detailed in note 1.3, the management is in the process of finalisation of restructuring of its debts
and as per indicative restructuring term-sheet, total accrued and outstanding mark-up due /
)79) payable till June 30, 2018, will be repaid on quarterly basis over a period of 2 years immediately
itzg; after the completion of principal repayment term. Un-provided mark-up / interest upto the

balance sheet date aggregated Rs. 1,908.045 million (2017: Rs. 1,663.687 million).




r

This non-provisioning is in contravention with the requirements of IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs. The
exact amount of un-provided mark-up / interest could not be ascertained because of non
availability of relevant information and documents due to on-going litigations with banks and
financial institutions as disclosed fully in note 28.1.1.

25.3 Confirmations in respect of mark-up / interest accrued on long-term finances, lease finances and
short-term finances have not been received due to pending litigations with the financial
institutions / lenders as disclosed fully in note 28.1.1.

2018 2017 |

Note Rupees Rupees i

26 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS ‘

Short-term finances - secured 26.1 & 26.3 1,879,288,871 1,879,288,871 |

Running finances - secured 26.2 & 26.3 854,985,812 854,985,812 s
Temporary bank overdraft - unsecured 264 727,412 1,096,763
2,735,002,095 2,735,371,446

26.1 This represents aggregate amount of the short-term finances obtained from various
banks/financial institutions against expired facilities. These finances, are secured by way of
ranking / hypothecation / floating charge over present and future current assets, pari passu
charge over present and future fixed assets, charge over raw cotton and cotton yarn, lien on export
letters of credit / sales contracts / documents, trust receipts and personal guarantees of sponsor
directors.

26.2 The abovementioned balances are against expired running finance facilities and have not been
renewed by the respective banks / financial institutions. These banks and financial institutions
have filed suits before different civil courts, banking courts and high courts for recovery of their
financial liabilities through attachment and sale of Company's hypothecated / mortgaged /
charged stocks and properties. The Company had also filed a global suit in the onorable Lahore
High Court for redemption / release of security, rendition of accounts, recovery of damages,
permanent injunction and ancillary reliefs as more fully detailed in note 28.1.1.

26.3 Year-end balance confirmations aggregating Rs. 2,735.00 million (2017: Rs. 2,735.371 million) from
the lending banks / financial institutions have not been received due to above-mentioned
litigations with them. Further, due to these litigations, bank statements for current financial vear
from all banks / financial institutions were also not available to ensure year-end balances of these
finance facilities.

26.4 These have arisen due to issuance of cheques in excess of balance at bank accounts. i

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
27 CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT
LIABILITIES
Long-term finances:
Faysal Bank Limited - term finance 11 35,714,286 35,714,286
Standard Chartered Bank - term finance I1] 75,000,000 75,000,000
Bank Alfalah Limited - LTF EOP 3,672,476 3,672,476
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 17,683,380 18,266,231
132,070,142 132,652,993

28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
28.1 Contingencies

pp——

28.1.1 Liabilities towards banks and financial institutions disclosed in note 21, 22, 25 and 26
(a) Various banks and financial institutions have filed recovery suits before civil courts, the
Honourable Lahore High Court, the Honourable High Court of Sindh and the Banking
Court Karachi, for recovery of their long-term, short-term and lease liabilities through
attachment and sale of Company's hypothecated / mortgaged / charged stocks and

properties. The aggregate amount of these claims is Rs. 4,005.232 million (2017: Rs,
4,005.232 million).
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The management is strongly contesting the above mentioned suits on the merits as well as
cogent factual and legal grounds available to the Company under the law. Since, all the
cases are pending before various courts, therefore, the ultimate outcome of these cases can
not be established to the date of these financial statements. Among all the cases referred
above, the most notable cases by or against the Company are explained in the following
sub-notes.

(b) The Company filed a suit in the Honourable Lahore High Court (LHC) against all banks /

28.1.2

financial institutions under Section 9 of the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finances)
Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) for redemption / release of security, rendition of
accounts, recovery of damages, permanent injunction and ancillary reliefs. The LHC vide
its interim order dated October 25, 2012 ordered not to disturb the present position of
current assets and fixed assets of the Company and no coercive action shall be taken
against the Company. The LHC through its judgement and decree announced on
September 11, 2013, rejected the plaint by exercising suo moto powers under order 7 Rule
[I of CPC. The Company filed appeal before Divisional Bench of the LI{C against the above-
mentioned judgement and decree. The Divisional Bench passed an order, dated November
27, 2013, that respondent banks will not liquidate the Company's assets and operation of
impugned judgement and decree dated September 11, 2013, will remain suspended
meanwhile.

The Company along with its restructuring agent (a lcading bank) and a few other lending
banks, had proposed an indicative term-sheet to its lending financial institutions on June
28, 2013 in order to restructure the outstanding debt obligations of the Company. The
proposed term-sheet is still in the process of finalization. Once finalized, it will be signed
by all parties and legal documentation will be executed to restructure outstanding debts of
the Company. The management expects that entire process will be completed in due
course of time and these recovery suits will be settled accordingly.

The Company has not provided for Rs. 12.519 million (2017: Rs. 12,519 million) in respect
of infrastructure cess levied by the Government of Sindh. The case was decided against the
Company by a single judge of the Honourable High Court of Sindh. The decision was
challenged before division bench of the same high court and stay for collection of cess was
granted. The Honourable High Court of Sindh decided the case by declaring that the levy
and collection of infrastructure fee prior to December 28, 2006, was illegal and ultra vires
and after that it was legal.

The Company filed an appeal in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the
above-mentioned judgement of the Honourable High Court of Sindh. Further, the
Government of Sindh also filed appeal against part of judgement decided against them.
The above appeals were disposed-off in May 2011 with a joint statement of the parties that,
during the pendency of the appeals, another law come into existence, which was not
subject matter in the appeal, therefore, the decision thereon be first obtained from the High
Court before approaching the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan with the right to
appeal. Accordingly, the petition was filed in the Honourable High Court of Sindh in
respect of the above view.

During the pendency of this appeal an interim arrangement was agreed, whereby bank
guarantees furnished for consignments cleared up to December 27, 2006, were returned
and bank guarantees were furnished for 50% of the levy for consignment released
subsequent to December 27, 2006, while payment was made against the balance amount.
As at June 30, 2017, the Company has provided bank guarantees aggregating Rs. 19.504
million (2017: Rs. 19.504 million) in favour of the Excise and Taxation Department.

The bank guarantees given by various banks on behalf of the Company to various parties
remain intact with the respective banks.




28.1.3

28.1.4

28.1.5

28.1.6

28.1.7

28.1.8

Gujranwala Energy Limited (GEL) through Standard Chartered Bank Limited (“the Bank”)
had provided a commitment guarantee of Euro € 3.00 million in favor of Wartsila Finland
OY and performance guarantee of US $ 1.00 million in favor of Private Power and
Infrastructure Board (PPIB). The Company being 50% joint venture partner in GEL is
responsible to the extent of 50% of the said guarantees only. GEL had obtained stay orders
against encashment of these guarantees, however, after vacation of stay orders both the
guarantees were encashed. However, the suit No. 795/09 filed by GEL against PPIB and
Wartsiala Finland OY and others before the Honourable High Court of Sindh at Karachi is
still sub-judice wherein the suit will be decided on merits after framing of issues and
recording of evidences. The guarantee issued to Wartsila Finland OY was a conditional
guarantee and could not have been encashed even after vacation of stay order for which

.

GEL had written letters to the Bank that before fulfillment of the conditions guarantees -

cannot be encashed. Since, the Bank has not instituted any suit neither against GEL nor
against the Company, therefore, no adjustment to effect the same is made in these financial
statements. Even otherwise the suits instituted by GEL before the Honourable High Court
of Sindh as well as the Civil Court, Lahore are still pending.

Counter guarantees of Rs. 78.363 million (2017: Rs. 78.363 million) were given by the
Company to various banks / financial institutions as at June 30, 2018, in respect of
guarantees issued in favour of various Government Departments / Institutions and Sui
Northern Gas Pipelines Limited. The bank guarantees given by various banks on behalf of
the Company to various parties remain intact with the respective banks.

Askari Bank Limited has filed a suit COS No. 37/2013 for recovery of Rs. 295.797 million
on account of two facilities i.e. cash finance facility and running finance facility provided to
the Company. The Honourable Lahore High Court decreed in favour of the plaintiff bank
to the extent of Rs. 295.797 million together with the cost of funds. The Company has filed
appeal against the impugned judgment, which is pending adjudication before the Division
Bench of the Honourable Lahore High Court. At the same time, the plaintiff bank has filed
an execution petition before the single bench of the Lahore High Court, which is pending
adjudication.

Meezan Bank Limited has filed a suit COS No. B-09/2013 for recovery of Rs. 46.492 million
on account of murabaha finance facilities provided to the Company. The Honourable
Banking Court No. II, Karachi decreed the suit vide its judgment dated December 20, 2016,
in favour of the plaintiff bank to the extent of Rs. 46.492 million together with the cost of
funds. The Company has filed appeal before the Honourable High Court of Sindh against
the impugned judgment and the same is pending adjudication before the Honourable
High Court of Sindh at Karachi.

First National Bank Modaraba filed a suit hearing # 122/15 against the Company for
recovery of Rs. 45.905 million. The Honorable Banking Court Lahore vide its judgement
dated September 19, 2017, decreed against the Company in favour of First national Bank
Modaraba for recovery of Rs. 45.905 million. The execution proceedings under the said
judgement were started under section 19 of the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finance)
Ordinance, 2001. The management has not recognized the impact of the said decree and
execution proceedings in these financial statements, since the same is pending
adjudication.

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited has filed a suit against the Company for recovery of Rs.
57.605 million with the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore. The Honorable Lahore
High Court vide its judgement dated May 27, 2016 decreed the suit agaisnt the Company
and the same was converted into execution proceedings by the Court under section 19 of
the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finance) Ordinance, 2001. The Company has not
recognized any adjustment to these financial statements. The execution proceeding is
pending for adjudication at the Banking Court, Lahore.




<)
nd

nd

ers
he
nd
| 1S
nd
al
ch
Jeu
Or
ial
art

he
of
Ui

of

on

to

ed
on
ed

ng,

on
ole
16,

of
st
ole

or
>Nt
nk
id
ce)
nd

n g

Rs.
re
ny
of
glels
s

28.1.9 Habib Bank Limited (previously First Habib Bank Modaraba) filed a suit against the
Company for recovery of Rs. 2,633,486 in the Honorable Banking Court no. 1, Karachi. The
said Court decreed suit against the Company vide its judgment dated April 21, 2076. The
same was converted into exccution proceedings by the court under section 19 of the
Financial Institution (Recovery of Finance) Ordinance, 2001. The management of the
Company has not recognized any adjustment to these financial statements. T'he execution
proceeding is pending adjudication at the Banking Court, [Lahore.

28.1.10 The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan, vide judgment dated August 22, 2014, has
already declared the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011, ultra-vires to the
Constitution and also directed that the entire amount so far recovered from the consumers
be refunded. In order to nullify the legal effect of the above judgment of the Supreme
Court of Pakistan, the FPederal Government promulgated the Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess Ordinance, 2014, whereby not only the cess was imposed afresh but all
the judgments passed earlier were declared to have no legal effect against the previous
recovery of the arrears of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess from the vear 2011 The
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Ordinance, 2014, was also challenged before
different high courts of Pakistan and in the meanwhile the Gas Infrastructure Development
Cess Act, 2015, was imposed to the same effect as that of Gas Infrastructure Development
Cess Ordinance, 2014, Yet again, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015, was
challenged before the lHonourable Lahore High Court as well as before the Honourable
High Court of Sindh. The tlonourable High Court of Sindh vide its judgment dated
October 26, 2016, decreed the suits in favour of the consumer, whereby the Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015, was held to be ultra vires and unconstitutional
and further directed Sui Southern Gas Company Limited as well as Sui Northern Gas
Pipelines Limited to refund the amounts received under the head of Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess from 2011 till date. The matter is still subjudice before the divisional
bench of the Honourable High Court of Sindh and we are hopeful that the judgment dated
October 26, 2016, passed in favour of the consumers shall be upheld and the Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015, shall again. be declared ultra vires to the
Constitution.

The Company has also instituted a suit hearing # 489/17 before the Hounourable High
Court of Sindh, wherein, stay has confirmed vide order dated March 03, 2017. The
Company has not passed on gas infrastructure development cess to its consumers and has
not paid amount of cess when stay order(s) were in field.

28.1.11 Company has challenged recovery of the Electricity Duty on scelf-generation of clectricity.
The Honorable Lahore high Court has passed order in favour of the Company and hence
staved the recovery of the same duty. Company, through this appeal has challenged the
recovery of lilectricity Duty on self-generation. Supreme court of Pakistan has ordered in
favour of the Company and hence stayed the recovery of the same duty.

28.1.12 The Company has instituted a suit against MCB Bank Limited vide COS No. 22/15
wherein along with other prayers, the Company has also praved ftor recovery of Rs.
412.094 million on account of acts and omissions committed by the Bank against the
Company. The matter is pending adjudication before Lahore High Court, l.ahore (LHC).
MCRB Bank Limited had also instituted a suit for recovery against the Company and others
vide COS No. 104/13, before the 1LHC.

However, the suit was returned vide order dated April 05, 2016 on account of lack ot
jurisdiction. Thereafter, the Bank instituted a suit bearing No. B-42/16 for recovery before
the Sindh High Court at Karachi (SHC) which is also pending adjudication.

28.1.13 Albaraka Bank Limited has filed a suit under section 20 of the Financial I[nstitution
Recovery of Finance Ordinance, 2001, ("the Ordinance") against the Company and its
management before the Banking Court Lahore and the same is pending adjudication.




28.1.14 Bank of Punjab instituted a suit for recovery of Rs. 501.719 million before the Honourable
Lahore High Court, Lahore (“LHC") under section 9 of the Financial Institution Recovery
of Finance Ordinance, 2001, (“the Ordinance”) against the Company and others bearing
COS No. 48/13. The suit was decreed vide judgment and decree dated March 28, 2018,
However, the Company has filed an appeal before the LHC against the Judgment and
decree dated March 28, 2018, which is also pending adjudication before the 111C. The
Execution Petition No. 233642/18 for the same amount as decreed is also pending
adjudication before the LHC.

28.2 Commitments

There is no capital commitment as at June 30, 2018, and June 30, 2017.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees &
29 SALES - net
Local sales
- Sale 29.1 - 1,332,888
- Processing income - '14,()00,000-'
- 15,332,888
Less: sales tax - -
- 15,332,888

29.1 Local sales include waste sales and cotton sales of Rs. nil (2017: Rs. nil) and Rs. nil (2017 Rs. 1.33
million) respectively.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
30 COST OF SALES
Stocks at beginning of the year
(finished goods and waste) 49,991,280 71,678,732
Cost of goods manufactured 30.1 81,443,989 100,695,356
131,435,269 172,374,088
Stocks at the end of the year
(finished goods and waste) (37,493,460} (49,991,280
93,941,809 122,382,808
30.1 Cost of goods manufactured
Raw materials written-off 30.2 20,568,878 35,403,924
Provision for obsolete store 3,938,007 5,250,676
Salaries and other benefits 105,233 5,410,288
Gratuity - 87,350
Fuel and power 7,867,737 358,265
Repair and maintenance - 4,000,000
Travelling and conveyance - 20,250
Depreciation 6.2 48,656,814 50,164,603
Other manufacturing expenses 307,320 -
81,443,989 100,695,356
Work-in-process adjustment - - i
81,443,989 100,695,356
30.2 Raw materials written-off !
Stocks at beginning of the year 82,275,513 117,679,437
Stocks at end of the year (61,706,635) {82,275,513)
20,568,878 35,403,924

30.3 This represents the provision for obsolete stores, spares and loose tools amounting to Rs.
3,938,007/- (2017: Rs. 5,250,676).




able 2018 2017
very Note Rupees Rupees
ring 31 DISTRIBUTION COST
018. Depreciation 6.2 700,603 922,916
and 32 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
ljhc Directors' meeting fee - -
ling Salaries and other benefits 246,717 11,868,224
Gratuity - 435,570
Rent, rates and taxes 2,887,710 5,361,381
Gas and electricity 1,605,697 1,967,266
Fee and subscriptions 672,163 5,230,789
Travelling and conveyance 511,327 111777
* Printing and stationery 7,141 83,884
Auditor's remuneration 32.1 250,000 250,000
88 Repair and maintenance 333,240 158,362
100 Entertainment 22,147 383,089
88 Insurance 45,282 -
) Communication 481,707 298,716
88 Legal and professional charges 7,441,500 10,722,500
30 Computer expenses 5,000 24,250
Depreciation 6.2 819,156 904,675
Other administrative expenses 294,091 772,152
15,622,878 39,879,137
32.1 Auditor's remuneration
Audit fee 240,000 240,000
39 Review report on Code of Corporate Governance 10,000 10,000
56 250,000 250,000
38 33 OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
80) [nterest on;
08 - term-deposit receipts 4,077 69,150
- - deposit accounts 15,741 66,988
24 - Defence Saving Certificates 6,177,241 5,507,998
76 - over due receivable balances of associated companies - 3,958,101
88 Reversal of bad debts 57,477,336 65,795,530
50 63,674,395 75,397,767
65 Income from non-financial assets
00 Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment - 427,117
50 63,674,395 75,824,884
03 34 FINANCE COST
: Mark-up / interest on;
56 - liabilities against asset subject to finance lease 177,149 58,164
Bank charges 272,143 547,817
=5 “ 449,292 605,981
- During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Company has not provided mark-up / interest on its long-term
%37 finances, lecase finances and short-term borrowings respectively aggregating Rs. 8.583 million (2017: Rs.
% 8.420 million), Rs. 1.224 million (2017: Rs. 1.224 million), Rs. 234.551 million (2017: Rs. 230.662 million)

== due to pending litigations with the financial institutions as detailed in note 25.
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
TAXATION ’
Current 35.1 - -
Deferred 11,362,101 45,897,624
11,362,101 45,897,024

35.1 No provision for minimum tax due under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, is
incorporated, as the Company has suffered gross loss before depreciation and other inadmissible
expenses due to non-operation of Company's manufacturing facilities. Further, no provision for
alternative corporate tax under section 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, is incorporated, as the
Company has suffered accounting loss.

2018 2017
LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Loss after taxation - (Rupees) (44,839,947) {20,735,446)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year - (Number) 22,225,038 22 225 ()38

Basic loss per share - basic and diluted - (Rupees) (2.02)

Diluted earnings / loss per share

A diluted earnings / loss per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any
convertible instruments in issue as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 which would have any cffect on
the loss per share if the option to convert is exercised.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
NET CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL
Decrease / (increase) in current assets:
Stock-in-trade - 7,978,753
Trade debtors 58,629,042 78,643,173
Loans and advances (1,054,900) 4,512,726
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 309,356 454,212
Other receivables (31,052) (296,081)
57,852,446 91,292,783
Decrease in trade and other payables (50,145,196) (31,510,578)
7,707,250 59,782,205

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief execulive Direclors

Particulars Fxecutive —]
2018 | 2017 2018 | 2017 2018 2017
Rupees
T\"la Ina é;l‘l'l'dl remuncration
and other benefits - - - - - 1,261,740
Gratuity - - - - ~ 127,614
- - - B - 1,389,354
No. of persons - - 1

38.1 Chief executive, directors and executives are also provided with frec use of Company maintained
vehicles in accordance with the Company's policy.
38.2 Meeting fees of Rs. nil (2017: Rs nil) were also paid to a director during the year.

2018 2017
Number Number
CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Numbers of spindles installed 44,784 44,784

Numbers of rotors installed 1,440

1,440

-
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Financial institutions and banks have curtailed and blocked the short-term limits, froze the funds in
current accounts to clear mark-up and other dues and attempted to realize their securities. These factors
created liquidity crises due to which the Company could not run its operations.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments;

- credit risk;

- liquidity risk; and

- market risk.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s risk
management framework. The Board of Directors is also responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies.

40.1 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter
parties fail completely to perform as contracted / fail to discharge an obligation / commitment
that it has entered into with the Company.

Credit risk mainly arises from deposits and margins, trade debtors, accrued mark-up / interest,
short-term investments, and balances with banks. The carrying amounts of financial assets that
represent the Company's maximum credit exposure as at the reporting date are as follows;

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

Deposits and margins 14,123,478 14,283,478
Trade debtors 32,510,762 33,662,468
Accrued mark-up / interest 62,688,063 62,688,063
Bank balances 12,366,253 30,406,131

121,688,556 141,040,140
Ageing of trade debtors at the reporting

date is as follows:
Not past due - -
Past due 1-90 days - -
Past due 91-180 days - -
Past due 181-365 days - -
More than one year 32,150,761 33,662,468
32,150,761 33,062,468

Based on past experience and keeping in view subsequent realisations, provision for doubtful
debts aggregating Rs. 113.98 million (2017: Rs.171.46 million) has been kept as at the reporting date
in respect of doubtful trade debtors and for other debtors, there are reasonable grounds to believe
that the amounts will be realised in short course of time.

The credit risk on deposits maintained with banks is limited as such banks enjoy reasonably high
credit rating. Accordingly, the management does not expect any counter party to fail in meeting
their obligations.

40.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. The Company is facing difficulty in maintaining sufficient level of
liquidity due to financial problems as all the banks and financial institutions have blocked / ceased

their finance facilities and filed suits for recovery of these finances.




40.3

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 |
Carrying Due within | Due after| Carrying Due within | Due after |
amount one year | one year amount one year one year
---------------------- Rupees Rupees  ---m-mmrmemmereornens
Long-term finances 114,386,762 114,386,762 - 114,386,762 114,386,762
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease 17,683,380 17,683,380 - 18,266,231 18,266,231
Trade and other payables 541,593,973 541,593,973 - 569,639,248 569,639,248
Accrued mark-up / interest 18,899,265 18,899,265 - 18,899,265 18,899 265
Short-term borrowings 2,735,002,095 2,735,002,095 - 2,735,371,446  2,735,371,446
3,427,565,475 3,427,565,475 - 3,456,562,952  3,456,562,932

In order to manage liquidity risk, the management alongwith its restructuring agent (a leading
bank) and a few other banks are negotiating with banks / financial institutions for restructuring of

principal and mark-up / interest and rescheduling of repayment terms as detailed in note 1.3 w

the financial statements and the management envisages that sufficient financial resources will be
available to manage the liquidity risk in future.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices, which affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments.

(a)

(b)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company is exposed to currency risk on import of raw materials, stores and spare
parts, plant and machinery, export of goods and foreign currency bank accounts mainly
denominated in U.S. Dollars. The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is as
follows;

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
Rupees U.S.$ Rupces U.S%
Bank balance 232,085 2,357 232,085 2,357
Net balance shect exposure 232,085 2,357 232,085 2,357
The following signiticant exchange rate applied during the year;
Average rate Reporting datce rate
2018 2017 2018 2017
U.S. Dollar to Rupee 113.20 104.69 121.6 104.80

Sensitivity analysis

At the reporting date, if Rupee had strengthened by 10% against U.S. Dollar with all other
variables held constant, loss for the year would have been increased / (decreased) by the
amounts shown below mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain / (loss) on
translation of financial assets and liabilities.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees
Effect on loss for the year:
U.S. Dollar to Rupee 26,681 4,801,041

The weakening of the Rupee against U.S Dollar would have had an equal but opposite
impact on loss for the year. The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of
the effects on profit for the year and assets / liabilities of the Company.

a— L
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(c) Interest rate risk
er Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
ad ; Majority of the interest rate risk of the Company arises from short and long-term
borrowings from banks and deposits with banks. However, the Company is not providing
for mark-up / interest on its long-term finances, liabilities against assets subject to finance
lease and short-term borrowings due to litigation with banks and financial institutions as
detailed in note 28.1.1. At the reporting date, the profile of the Company's interest bearing
financial instruments is as follows;
2018 2017
‘ Rupees Rupees
o Fixed rate instruments
o ! Financial assets 57,018,604 50,841,363
ing Financial liabilities 3,672,477 3,672,477
, of . Variable rate instruments
' to Financial assets 15,552,148 16,661,344
be Financial liabilities 2,885,971,502 2,886,923,704
The rates of mark-up / interest have been disclosed in the respective notes to these
financial statements.
tes Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
ial The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date
would not affect profit or loss of the Company.
Nt Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments is not presented as the
e Company is not providing for mark-up / interest due to litigation with banks and financial
ly institutions.
as 40.4 Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between
- knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's Jength transaction. Consequently, differences may arise
between carrving values and the fair value estimates.
7_ As at June 30, 2018, the carrying values of all financial assets and liabilitics reflected in the financial
7 statements approximate to their fair values except Defence Savings Certificates that are stated at
- amortized cost.
40.5 Capital risk management
- The Company's prime objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
— continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for sharcholders, benefits for
— other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes
T adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the
he . capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and / or
on ) issue new shares.
s There was no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year. Further,
= the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements, except those, related to
maintenance of debt covenants, commoniy imposed by the providers of debt finance, which the
1 Company could not comply as at the reporting date.
ite
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise of associated companies, directors of the Company, key management
personnel, companies in which directors, key management personnel and close members of the families
of the directors and key management personnel are interested. The Company, in the normal course of
business, carries out transactions with various related parties. Remuneration of the key management
personnel is disclosed in note 38. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under receivables
and payables. Other significant transactions with related partics are as follows:

. 2017
Name of related party  Relationship Transactions 2018 :
Rupees Rupees

&€
Paramount Spinning Common  Advance / loan provided 616,080 - N
Mills Limited directorship Advance / loan received 1,725,276 - l)\

Guilstan Spinning Mills  Common  Advance / loan provided 778,800 937,073
Limited directorship Advance / loan received - 6,084,000 §
Mark-up charged - 3,958,101

42 SEGMENT INFORMATION

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

(a) Cotton sale represents 0% (2017: 9%) of the total sales of the Company.

(b)  All of the Company's sales relate to customers in Pakistan.

(¢) All non-current assets of the Company at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 are located in Pakistan.

2018 2017
Number Number
43 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employees as at June 30,
- Permanent 11 12
Average number of employees during the year
- Permanent 12 13

44 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
There are no significant adjusting or non adjusting event after the reporting date requiring adjustment

or disclosure in financial statements.

45 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, to facilitate
comparison and better presentation. These have been done mainly due to adoption of revised format of
the financial statements under Companies Act, 2017, as disclosed in respective notes. No other *

significant rearrangements or reclassifications have been made in these financial statements in thc{
current year. I
46 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE |

These financial statements were authorised for issue on _Oé 2 lo Z 207 8_ by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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GUILSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

OPERATING RESULTS

Total number of spindle installed
Average number of spindles worked
Total number of rotors installed
Average number of rotors worked

Installed capcity after conversion into 20's

Actual production after conversion into 20's

»

Sales

Gross (loss)/ profit
Operating (loss)/ profit
Financial Expenses
(Loss)/ Profit before tax

(Loss)/Profit for the year after taxation
Unappropreated profit carried forward

FINANCIAL POSITION

Paid up capital

Share holder's equity

Long term loans

Obligation under finance lease
Deftfered Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Fixed Assels

Long term investment

Long term deposits

Current Assets

KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA

FOR THE LAST SIX YEARS

2018

Rupees

44,784

1,440

18,140,662

(93,941,809
(110,265,290
(449,292
(47,040,187
(44,839,947)

)
)
)
)

(2,866,228,637)

222,250,380
(1,416,943,532)

285,234,278
3,439,268,708
2,101,317,712

132,302,532

8,476,563

315,462,647

2017
Rupees

44,784

1,440

18,140,662

15,332,888
(107,049,920)
(147,851,973)
(605,981)
(72,633,070)
(26,735,446)

(2,838,295,382)

222,250,380
(1,381,265,445)

319,959,641
3,468,284,283
2,151,494,285

126,125,291

8,476,563

370,882,340

2016
Rupees

44,784

1,440

18,140,662

85,557,040
(103,418,915)
(164,186,044)

6,969,097
(184,624,989)
(186,047,987)

(2,805,061,306)

222,250,380
(1,354,529,999)

366,027,814
3,505,148,091
2,203,633,647

119,284,405

8,476,563

435,251,290

2015
Rupees

44,784
13,495
1,440

244
18,140,662
4,600,071

24,761,805
(394,520,507)
(476,810,795)
12,174,790
(498,146,217)
(417,126,338)

(2,659,970,836)

222,250,380

(2,270,812,574)
114,386,763
18,918,802
364,370,012
3,624,639,939
2,257,518,874
95,352,143
8,476,563
604,108,840

2014

Rupees

1,784
26,649
1,440

532
18,140,662
7,279,250

991,069,459
(332,522,608)
(200,370,481)
6,661,350
(208,802,457)
(202,745,411)

(2,390,322,759)

222,250,380

(1,896,072,379)
114,386,763
19,602,910
884,906,999
3,475,917,156
3,709,851,590
92,044,601
8,666,608
939,875,957




GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

A) ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES SHARES
Gulistan Spinning Mills Limited 10,302
Peridot Products (Pvt.) Limited 2,065,470

B) NIT &ICP
IDBP (ICP UNIT) 106
National Bank of Pakistan Trustee Department 550
CDC - Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust 1,203,474

C) DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, THEIR SPOUSES
AND MINOR CHILDREN
DIRECTORS
Mr. Tanveer Ahmed (Resigned on 10.04.17) 2,077,979
Mr. Riaz Ahmed {Resigned on 10.03.17)

Mr. Muhammad Akhtar Mirza 500
Mr.Abid Sattar 500
Mr. Sohail Magsood 650
Mr. Iftikhar Ali 500
Mr.Muhammad Magbool Anjum (Appointed on 10.04.17) 500
Mr.Muhammad Ashraf Khan {Appointed on 10.03.17) 610
Mr. Hussain Ather 570
SPOUSE

Mrs. Naureen Tanveer 933,046

D) BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, NON

BANKING FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INSURANCE COMPANIES,

MODARABAS & MUTUAL FUNDS

BANKS

National Bank of Pakistan 313,865
NIB Bank Limited 19,496
Islamic Investment Bank Limited 9,345
Al-Faysal Investment Bank Limited 50
INSURANCE

State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan 263,326

E} Other Companies 7,684,729

F) Joint Stock Companies 75,761

G} General Public {Local) 7,563,709

22,225,038
srq

G) SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 05% OR MORE r
Mr. Tanveer Ahmed 2,077,979
Mr. Abdul Shakoor 2,098,071
OPAL (SMC-PRIVATE) LIMITED 2,200,000 i
BLESSED CORPORATION (PVT.) LTD. 1,925,000 :
Gulistan Textile Mills Limited 2,112,655
Peridot Products (Pvt.) Limited 2,065,470
National Bank of Pakistan Trustee Department 1,203,474

H) TRADING IN THE SHARES OF COMPANY DURING THE YEAR BY THE

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, NIL
COMPANY SECRETARY AND THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN




GULSHAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Particulars Holders Held Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse and

minor children 11 3,014,855 13.57

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related

Parties 2 2,075,772 9.34

NIT & ICE’ 3 1,204,130 5.42

Banks, Development Finance institutions, Non- Banking

Financial Institutions 5 342,756 154

Insurance Companies 1 263,326 1.18

Joint Stock Companies 7 75,761 0.34

General Public (Local) 3,484 7,563,709 34.03

Other Companies 10 7,684,729 34.58
3,523 22,225,038 100.00
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Form of Proxy

Gulshan Spinning Mills Limited

L S N

[/We being member of Gulshan Spinning Mills Limited holder
of ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio No. and/or CRC
participant [.D. No. Account No hereby appoint who is
also member of Gulshan Spinning Mills Limited vide Folio No. or CDC participant
[.D. No. Account No. or failing him/her of Mr.

of who'is also member of Gulshan Spinning Mills Limited vide
Folio No. or CDC participant 1.D. No. Account No. as

my/our proxy to attend. speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on 27" October 2018 at 12:00 noon and at any adjournment

thereof.

As witness my/our hand this day of 2018 | Appropriate

Signed by the said Revenue

Witness 1:- | Stamp

Name:-

Adress:-
CNIC:-

Witness 2:-
Name:-
Adress:-
CNIC:-
Notes:

1. The Proxy in order to be valid must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed and be deposited with the
Company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding of Meeting.

2. The proxy must be a member of the Company.

3. Signature should agree with the specimen signature, registered with the Company.

4. CDC Shareholders, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring with them their National
Identity Card/Passport in original to prove his/her identity, and in case of Proxy must enclose an attested

copy of his/her NIC or passport.

5. Representative of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.



